
  VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
JOINT PLAN COMMISSION & ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

REGULAR MEETING  
 

 SEPTEMBER 21, 2016 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

1. Call to Order & Roll Call 
Chair Kraus called to order the regular meeting of the Joint Plan Commission and Zoning Board 
of Appeals (PCZBA) of the Village of Lake Bluff on Wednesday, September 21, 2016, at 7:00 
p.m. in the Village Hall Board Room (40 E. Center Avenue).  

 
 The following members were present: 

 
Members: Sam Badger 

Leslie Bishop 
David Burns 
Elliot Miller 
Gary Peters   
Steven Kraus, Chair 

 
Absent: Mary Collins  
 
Also Present: Benjamin Schuster, Village Attorney 
  Brandon Stanick, Assistant to the Village Administrator (A to VA) 
 

2. Non-Agenda Items and Visitors 
Chair Kraus stated the PCZBA allocates 15 minutes for those individuals who would like the 
opportunity to address the PCZBA on any matter not listed on the agenda.  
 
Ms. Nancy White (resident) provided an update to her proposal for redevelopment of Central 
Business District Block 3 and her actions taken since the August 17th PCZBA meeting.  She stated 
her team is not able to move forward with the proposal because of the time constraints imposed by 
the property owner. 
 
In response to a question from Member Badger, Ms. White stated the selling price for the five lots 
was quoted at $1.9 million.  She stated her team continues to explore more profitable options, but 
is not able to move forward at this time. 
 

3. Approval of the July 20, 2016 PCZBA Regular Meeting Minutes 
In response to a red-lined version showing corrections to the minutes from last month, Member 
Bishop moved to approve the July 20, 2016 PCZBA Regular Meeting Minutes as corrected. 
Member Miller seconded the motion. The motion passed on a unanimous voice vote. 
 

3. Approval of the August 19, 2016 PCZBA Regular Meeting Minutes 
Member Burns moved to approve the August 19, 2016 PCZBA Regular Meeting Minutes as 
presented.  Member Peters seconded the motion. The motion passed on a unanimous voice vote. 
 

4. Continuation of a Public Hearing for 311 E. Center Avenue to Consider: i) a Variation from 
the Maximum Gross Floor Area Regulations of Section 10-5-6 of the Zoning Code; and ii) a 



Joint Plan Commission & Zoning Board of Appeals  
Regular Meeting Minutes – September 21, 2016 

 

 2

Variation from the Minimum Accessory Structure Side Yard and Rear Yard Setback 
Requirements of Section 10-5-9 of the Zoning Code; and iii) any Other Zoning Relief as 
Required to Construct a Detached Garage in the Rear Yard  
Chair Kraus introduced the agenda item, opened the public hearing and then requested an update 
from Staff. 
 
A to VA Stanick reported the Village received a zoning application from the property owner of 
311 E. Center Avenue to build a detached two car garage in the rear and side yards of the property.  
At its meeting on July 20th the PCZBA conducted a public hearing to consider the Petitioner’s 
request and continued the public hearing to allow the Petitioner time to solicit feedback from 
neighbors and to explore setback distances that are comparable to the garage immediately to the 
east.  A to VA Stanick stated on August 2nd the Petitioner submitted a revised Project with a 3’ 
setback from the easterly interior side yard lot line and 3’9” from the rear yard lot line.  An “auto-
drive” diagram is provided by the Petitioner in the revised materials showing a turning area 
available for a garage without zoning setback relief and for a garage with a 3’ setback (or 2’ 
encroachment) from the easterly property line and a setback of 3’9” (or 1.25’ encroachment) from 
the rear lot line illustrating the desired placement of the garage.  Also included in the packet is a 
memorandum from Village Engineer Jeff Hansen, an email from the property owner to the south 
and a copy of Ordinance #2013-19, an ordinance granting variations from the Village’s rear yard 
setback, side yard setback and maximum gross floor area regulations, allowing the replacement of 
an existing garage located at 313 E. Center Ave. (neighboring property to the east). 
 
A to VA Stanick stated should the PCZBA vote to recommend granting the zoning relief from the 
minimum accessory structure setback regulations, Staff recommends the PCZBA also consider a 
condition requiring the Petitioner to remove the existing deck/steps in addition to the planned 
demolition of the shed.  This condition would not necessitate zoning relief from the maximum 
gross floor area regulations.  
 
Ms. Helen Tunney (Petitioner) and Mr. Neal Gerdes (Architect) introduced themselves and 
addressed questions from the Commissioners. 
 
Member Bishop expressed her appreciation for the drawing and asked if permeable pavers could 
be used for the new patio that is indicated on the plans.  
 
Member Badger expressed his concern regarding the existing tree located between the driveways.  
Mr. Gerdes stated the Village Arborist and In Care of Trees has inspected the tree and advised of 
options to better preserve the tree.  He also presented a letter from the neighbor to the east 
expressing their opinion regarding the tree. 
 
A to VA Stanick stated Staff has inspected the tree and believes it will be impacted by the 
construction. The Petitioner will be required to go through the tree removal process to take down 
the tree and will require replacement or a removal fee.  
 
Ms. Tunney presented a letter from the neighbors located behind the property expressing their 
support for the project. 
 
Chair Kraus asked for comments from the public.  As there were no comments, Chair Kraus closed the 
public hearing 



Joint Plan Commission & Zoning Board of Appeals  
Regular Meeting Minutes – September 21, 2016 

 

 3

 
Chair Kraus expressed his opinion the request could be considered a special privilege, but since 
the Village approved a similar request for the neighboring property, it is appropriate to apply the 
same circumstance for this request. 
 
Member Miller moved to recommend the Village Board approve a 40% variation from the 
minimum accessory structure interior lot line setback regulations to allow a setback of 2 ft.; and ii) 
approved, contingent on the Village Board’s approval of the interior lot line setback zoning relief, 
a 25% variation from the minimum accessory structure rear lot line setback regulations to allow a 
setback of 3.75 ft. with the conditions that a) the shed and the rear deck/steps are removed and ii) 
the new patio (as shown on the plans) is built using permeable pavers.  Member Badger seconded 
the motion. The motion passed on the following roll call vote: 
 
Ayes:  (6)  Miller, Peters, Badger, Bishop, Burns and Chair Kraus 
Nays:  (0)  
Absent: (1) Collins   
 

5. Application Withdrawn and the Public Hearing Cancelled in Consideration of the 
Following: i) a Special Use Permit for a Planned Mixed-Use Development to Permit the 
Construction and Maintenance of a 16 Unit Multi-Family Structure and Related 
Improvements (Development) at 120 E. Scranton Avenue (former PNC Bank Property) and 
ii) Any Other Zoning Relief as Required to Construct and Maintain the Development at the 
Property 
Chair Kraus stated the petition was withdrawn by The Roanoke Group therefore the public 
hearing is cancelled. 
 
A to VA Stanick stated the Village Board approved an amended Planned Mixed-Use Development 
Ordinance with provisions that limit building height to 30 feet and if an advisory board does not 
act within the time prescribed by the ordinance, the decision is “no recommendation” and not a 
favorable recommendation.  The purpose of this change is to more accurately represent the 
decision of the advisory board.   

 
In response to a question from Member Burns, A to VA Stanick stated the Village Board voted not 
to include a provision that would trigger a super majority vote should the PCZBA vote to not 
recommend approval of a PMD. 
 

6. A Discussion Concerning Updates to the Lake Bluff Comprehensive Plan and Planning 
Elements 
A presentation regarding land use planning was presented by Chair Kraus and A to VA Stanick.  
Members Badger, Bishop and Miller reviewed the decisions and actions considered by the former 
Planning Commission to update the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The presentation covered distinctions between a comprehensive plan, zoning regulations and 
design guidelines, as well as the reasons for a comprehensive plan and an overview of planning 
elements and concepts typically used in municipal plans.   
 



Joint Plan Commission & Zoning Board of Appeals  
Regular Meeting Minutes – September 21, 2016 

 

 4

A discussion regarding updates to the Comprehensive Plan ensued.  It was the consensus of the 
group to confirm the planning elements that will be used in the plan, as well as review the maps 
previously prepared for the Village during the Plan Commission’s review in 2011.   
 
Mr. Tom McAfee (resident) asked the PCZBA to consider planning for east/west alternative 
emergency routes due to the occasional flooding under the Sheridan Road viaduct and how the 
current Metra railway affects the surrounding area. 
 
Ms. Maureen Chamberlain (resident) expressed her interest in impacts to traffic  when Target and 
Stonebridge are both operational.  A to VA Stanick stated a traffic impact study was completed as 
part of the Target development that included a built out Stonebridge development.   
 

7. Staff Report 
A to VA Stanick provided an update on Institutional Zoning Districts noting the Village will be 
working closely with the Park District in the coming months.  
 

8. Commissioner’s Report 
Chair Kraus reported the next regular PCZBA meeting is scheduled for October 19, 2016. 
 
A to VA Stanick stated the Village has received a special use permit application for a CrossFit 
fitness facility in the industrial park.  The PCZBA is scheduled to hold a public hearing at its 
October meeting. 
 

9. Adjournment 
As there was no further business to come before the PCZBA, Member Badger moved to adjourn 
the meeting.  Member Miller seconded the motion.  The meeting adjourned at 8:55 a.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted,      
 
 
 
 
Brandon Stanick 
Assistant to the Village Administrator 



VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
Memorandum 
 

 
TO:    Chair Kraus and Members of the Joint Plan Commission & Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

FROM:  Brandon Stanick, Asst. to the Village Administrator 
 

DATE:  October 14, 2016 
 

SUBJECT:    Agenda Item #4 – Physical Fitness Facility Special Use Permit Request for 37 
Sherwood Terrace, Units #132-133 

 

 

 
Background and Summary 
 
On September 20, 2016 the Village received a zoning application from Hunter Fitness and Nutrition, 
Inc. (Petitioner) seeking a Special Use Permit (SUP) to allow the operation of a physical fitness facility 
at 37 Sherwood Terrace, Units #132-133. 
 

Applicant Information: Hunter Fitness and Nutrition, Inc. (Petitioner) 

Location: 37 Sherwood Terrace, Units #132-133 
 

Requested Action: 
 

Request for a Special Use Permit 
 

Public Notice: Lake County News Sun – September 27, 2016 
 

Existing Zoning: Light Industry District (L-1) 
 

Purpose: Request for a Special Use Permit to operate a 
physical fitness facility in the L-1 District. 
 

Tenant Space: 
 

3,780 sq. ft.  
 

Existing Land Use: L-1 District – multi-tenant building with office and 
service uses  
 

Surrounding Land Use:  North: Vacant lot 
 East: Forest Preserve across US Rt. 41 
 South: Auto Dealer  
 West: Multi-Tenant Office 
 

Comprehensive Plan Land Use 
Objective: 

Enhance and maximize economic return to the 
Village in a manner compatible with existing uses.  
 

Zoning History: Not applicable  
 

Applicable Land Use  
Regulations: 
 

 Section 10-4-2E: Special Use Permits 
 



Zoning Analysis  
 
The Petitioner will operate a physical fitness facility in a multi-tenant building mainly comprised of 
office and service uses.  According to the Petitioner, the physical fitness services are provided in 
groups of 8 to 16 people.  Also, in addition to small group training, the Petitioner will provide personal 
training, specialty training (yoga, sports massage, etc.), and special classes (boot camps, seniors, etc.).  
The Petitioner states as part of the submittal that 1,160 sq. ft. of space will be used for office and 2,620 
sq. ft. for the gym.    
 
According to the Petitioner the hours of operation will be:  
 
Hours of Operation: 
Monday - Friday: 5:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.  
Saturday: 8:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. 
Sunday:  Closed (depends on future demand) 

 
Due to the nature of the business Staff anticipates regular deliveries to the building will be minimal, if 
any.  
 
Required parking in the L-1 Zoning District for production, assembly and office uses is 1 space per 
600 sq. ft. of floor area.  The building is 35,458 sq. ft. in size and requires 59 spaces; there are 
currently 71 total spaces.   
  
There will be minimal impact to public utilities as adequate water and sewer services are currently 
available.  Sanitation service will be provided by the property owner’s contractor.  
 
Village Staff does not anticipate any irregular police and/or fire service impacts.  
 
The PCZBA may recall its consideration of SUPs earlier this year of two separate fitness facilities: 
Vlad’s Gym, Inc. (personal training) and Lyft Health & Fitness (CrossFit and weight training).  The 
ordinances approving the SUPs for these businesses are provided as attachments.  
 
The Petitioner has provided statements addressing the standards for SUPs in the attached zoning 
application.  The PCZBA should consider if the Petitioner’s statements and submitted materials satisfy 
the established standards for SUPs.  
 
PCZBA Authority 
 

The PCZBA has authority to: 
 

 Recommend the Village Board approve, approve with conditions or deny the request for:  
o a SUP to operate a physical fitness facility at 37 Sherwood Terrace, Units #132-133. 

 
 
 
 



Recommendation 
 

Following the public hearing to consider the requests, the PCZBA should take one of the following 
actions: 

 If more information is required, continue the public hearing to a date certain to allow the 
Petitioner to provide additional information. 

 If more information is not required, vote to recommend the Village Board approve, approve 
with conditions or deny the request for:  

o a SUP to operate a physical fitness facility at 37 Sherwood Terrace, Units #132-133. 
 

Attachments 
 

 Petitioner’s zoning application and related material; and 
 Ordinances #2016-03 (Vlad’s Gym) and #2016-21 (Lyft Health & Fitness). 

 
If you should have any questions concerning the information provided in this memorandum, please 
feel free to contact me at 847-283-6889. 





































































































































































VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
 
Memorandum 
 
TO:   Chair Kraus and Members of the Joint Plan Commission & Zoning Board of Appeals 
 
FROM:  Brandon Stanick, Asst. to the Village Administrator 
 
DATE:  October 14, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item #5 – Arden Shore Property Redevelopment Pre-Application Meeting  
 
The purpose of this memorandum is to transmit preliminary plans and related information for the 
proposed redevelopment of the former Arden Shore Child and Family Services property, located at 500 
Arden Shore Road (Property), as a Planned Residential Development (PRD).  Earlier this week Village 
Staff met with Pete Speranza (owner’s attorney) and Larry Booth (architect/planner/adjacent property 
owner) to review and discuss the redevelopment of the Property.  Mr. Speranza and Mr. Booth 
(Petitioner) have requested a pre-application meeting with the PCZBA pursuant to Section 10-5J-4 of 
the Zoning Code:  
 

“Any landowner who proposes to file a plan may at his request, appear 
before the PCZBA to review with the PCZBA the general nature of the 
proposed plan prior to filing the plan.  Nothing that transpires at such 
meeting will be deemed to constitute a commitment on the part of the 
landowner, the PCZBA or the Village.”   

 
The intent of this workshop meeting is to provide an opportunity to review the general concept for the 
development with the PCZBA prior to a formal submittal and public hearing (currently not scheduled).  
Because this is a pre-application meeting and not a public hearing, a public notice is not required to be 
published in the newspaper or mailed to surrounding property owners advising of this meeting. 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended the PCZBA conduct a pre-application meeting by receiving an informal presentation 
of the proposed development and provide feedback to the Petitioner.   
  
Attachments 
 

 PRD Concept Plans and Documents; 
 Aerial Map of Neighborhood;  
 Summary of Zoning Regulations and Related Comprehensive Plan Objectives; and 
 Chapter 5J of Title 10 of the Zoning Code Concerning PRD Regulations.   

 
If you have any questions regarding this item, please feel free to contact me at 847-283-6889. 
 













Lake County, Illinois

Disclaimer: The selected feature may not occur anywhere in the current map extent.  A Registered Land Surveyor should be consulted to determine the precise location of property boundarieson the ground. This map does not constitute a regulatory determination and is not a base for engineering design.  This map is intended to be viewed and printed in color.

Geographic Information System
Lake County
Department of Information Technology
18 N County St
Waukegan IL 60085
(847) 377-2373
Map Printed on 7/7/2016
 

¯

610 ft

Tax Parcels
Tax Parcels
Municipalities
Trails



ARDEN SHORE PROPERTY 
500 ARDEN SHORE ROAD
PIN: 12‐16‐101‐007
Existing Lot Area: approximately 1,132,500 sq. ft. or 26 acres

Comparable Zoning Districts C‐E E‐1 E‐2 R‐1

Required Lot Area (sq. ft.) 200,000 65,340 43,560 20,000

Required Lot Width (ft.) 200 150 125 100

Total Lots Allowed* 5 17 26 56

Allowable Floor Area 23,600 10,134 7,956 5,600

* Total no. of lots allowed is based on lot area only and does not account for lot width requirements. 
** Maximum density pursuant to Section 10‐5J‐3D of the Zoning Code.

Summary of Related Comprehensive Plan Objectives

Land Use (LU1‐1) Maintain existing zoning classifications with exception of Arden shore parcel: pursue redevelopment of the 
area as a PRD in an manner compatible with neighboring residential uses. See AD2‐1.

Land Use (LU1‐3) Retain recreation space provided by Shore Acres Country Club…..Promote the C‐E or E‐1 residential development 
(using the applicable underlying zoning) within those areas that do not now or in the future qualify as 
conserva on easements. See LU1‐1, AD2‐2 (relates to Crab Tree Farm proper es), 
PO1‐1 (related to open space in Crab Tree Farm property) and PO1‐4.

Annexation/Development (AD2‐1) Pursue redevelopment of the area as a PRD in a manner compatible wit neighboring residential uses. See LU1‐1.
Pub. Services & Infrastructure (PS1‐3) Extend sanitary sewer services to underserved areas as development or subdivision takes place.  Develop specific

guidelines detailing when sanitary sewer systems are to be brought into an area to service development.
Pub. Services & Infrastructure (PS1‐4) Encourage the elimination of septic systems.
Open Space/Parks (PO1‐4) Maintain and enhance scenic easements along Sheridan Road (north and south), GB Rd (north of 176) and

Rt 176 and Rt 43.
Open Space/Parks (PO3‐1) Retain, maintain and extend as feasible the open space adjacent to Sheridan Road from east Sheridan Rd to 

the Village limits to the north.
Open Space/Parks (PO4‐1) Retain the recreation space provided by the Shore Acres Country Club. 

Complete Comprehensive Plan available at: www.lakebluff.org/departments‐services/community‐development/291‐comprehensive‐plan

25 units/100 acres**

PRD
















































































